AD NUMBER

ADB279872

NEW LIMITATION CHANGE

TO

Approved for public release, distribution unlimited

FROM

Distribution: Further dissemination only as directed by OSRD, Washington, DC 20330, Jun 1945; or higher DoD authority.

AUTHORITY

AFOSR, per DTIC Form 55, dtd 14 Nov 2002

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

Classification cancelled of changed to:

9646 W

OSRD List 40 Initials of Officer making the change:

DaB 201

28 Jun 45 2 2 2 CONFTDENTAL

Division 2, National Defense Research Committee

of the

Office of Scientific Research and Development

PENETRATION THEORY: SEPARABLE FORCE LAWS AND THE

TIME OF PENETRATION

Jun 45 DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT F:

Further dissemination only as directed by OSRD, Wash. Dr. 20330

or higher DoD authority.

by

Richard A. Beth

AL SCOLLD.

NDRC Report No. A-333 OSRD Report No. 5258

This document contains information affecting the national defense of the United States within the meaning of the Espionage Act, U.S.C., 50; 31 and 32. Its transmission or the revelation of its contents in any manner to an unauthorized person is prohibited by law.

Reproduced From Best Available Copy

20020517 080

CONFIDENTIAL

- 53 Copy No.

NUSERNES (NESS)

10 JUL 10 AM 8 51

Division 2, National Defense Research Committee

of the

Office of Scientific Research and Development

PENETRATION THEORY: SEPARABLE FORCE LAWS AND THE

TIME OF PENETRATION

by

Richard A. Beth

NDRC Report No. A-333 OSRE Report No. 5258

ted by

Approved on June 28, 1945 for submission to the Committee

Walker Bleakney Princeton University

Ralph J. Slutz, Technical Aide Division 2 Effects of Impact and Explosion

UNCLASSIFIED

The NDRC Technical Reports Section for armor and ordnance edited this report and prepared it for duplication.

Requests for additional reports should be addressed through liaison channels to: National Defense Research Committee Technical Reports Section Room 4724, Munitions Building Washington 25, D.C.

UNCLASSIFIED

ii

Office of Scientific Research and Development NATIONAL DEFENSE RESEARCH COMMITTEE Technical Reports Section Room 4724, Munitions Building

11

UNCLASSIFIED

Washington 25, D.C. a. C. S. C. 33 1.9/1382 July 21, 1945

CONFIDENTIAL

Recipients of NDRC Report A-333 (OSRD-5258), Penetration TO: theory: Separable force laws and the time of penetration

FROM: Technical Reports Section

e de ma

1

The second equation on page 1 is incorrect. It should read

$$R = a(x)v^{2\lambda} + b(x)v^{2}$$

instead of

$$R = a(x)v^2\lambda + b(x)v^2.$$

Please make this correction on your copy.

UNCLASSIFIED

Preface

UNCLASSIFIED

INCLASSIFIED

The work described in this report is pertinent to the project designated by the War Department Liaison Officer as CE-36 and to the project designated by the Navy Department Liaison Officer as NO-12. The report constitutes a progress report under Contract OEMsr-260 with Princeton University.

Initial distribution of copies

Nos. 1 to 21 to Liaison Office, OSRD, for Admiralty (Operational Research Section) Air Ministry (Scientific Advisor; Director Armament Requirements) Department of Scientific and Industrial Research (Road Research Laboratory; National Physical Laboratory) Ministry of Aircraft Production (Director Armament Development; Central Library) Ministry of Home Security (Research and Experiments Department) Ministry of Supply (Armament Research Department; Armament Design Department; Anti-Concrete Committee; SR 7) Ordnance Board War Office (Scientific Advisor; Army Operational Research Group) Additional distribution (6 copies) Nos. 22 to 28 to Office of the Executive Secretary, OSRD; No. 29 to Office of Field Service, OSRD (V. V. Sides); No. 30 to J. P. Baxter, III, Historian; OSRD; No. 31 to R. C. Tolman, Vice Chairman, NDRC; Nos. 32 and 33 to E. B. Wilson, Jr., Chief, Division 2; No. 34 to W. Bleakney, Deputy Chief, Division 2; No. 35 to H. L. Bowman, Member, Division 2; No. 36 to W. E. Lawson, Member, Division 2; No. 37 to D. P. MacDougall, Member, Division 2; No. 38 to J. von Neumann, Member, Division 2; No. 39 to S. A. Vincent, Member, Division 2; No. 40 to M. P. White, Technical Aide, Division 2; No. 41 to R. A. Beth, Consultant, Division 2; No. 42 to P. ... Bridgman, Consultant, Division 2; No. 43 to C. W. Curtis, Consultant, Division 2; No. 44 to N. M. Newmark, Consultant, Division 2; No. 45 to A. H. Taub, Consultant, Division 2; Nos. 46 and 47 to Division 2 Library, Princeton University; No. 48 to L. H. Adams, Chief, Division 1; No. 49 to H. B. Allen, Deputy Chief, Division 1;

iii ··





iv

UNCLASSIFIED

C O N F-I D E N T I A L

CONTENTS

		Page
Abstract		1
Section		
1.	Introduction	2
2.	Notation	2
3.	Equation of motion and time of penetration	3
4.	Classification of penetration theories	3
5.	The general separable force law $R = c \cdot g(x) \cdot f(v) \cdot \cdot \cdot \cdot$	4
6.	The force law $R = cx^a v^b$	9
7.	The Poncelet force law $R = a + bv^2$	13
8.	Sectional-pressure theories and the time of penetration .	14
9.	A perforation hypothesis	16
10.	Conclusions	17
List of r	eferences	18

List of Figures

Figure		Page
1.	Classification of penetration theories	- 5
2.	Graphical representation of Ecs. (14) and (15) for a separable force law	6
3.	$K = \frac{v_0 t_1}{x_1}$ for the separable force law $R = cx^a v^b$	11
4.	$K = \frac{v_0 t_1}{x_1}$ for the Poncelet force law	12

v

PENETRATION THEORY: SEPARABLE FORCE LAWS AND THE

TIME OF PENETRATION

Abstract

The equation of motion of a penetrating projectile can be integrated if the force law depends only on the depth of penetration \underline{x} and the velocity \underline{v} , and has either of the two general forms:

 $R = c \cdot g(x) \cdot f(v)$

or

$$R = a(x)v^{2} + b(x)v^{2}$$

both of which include as special cases the classical sectional-pressure theories of penetration. The second of these has been discussed in a previous report. The present report summarizes the separable force laws represented by the first.

For a separable force law the relation between x and v during penetration can be expressed in terms of the striking velocity v_0 and the maximum penetration x_1 in such a way that the mass of the projectile and the target strength parameter <u>c</u> are eliminated. This leads to simplified formulae for computing times of penetration. The formulae for a number of special cases of separable force laws are tabulated.

The separable force law $R = cx^a v^b$ leads to a penetration formula of theform $x_1 = constant \times v_0^{\infty}$, where $\alpha = (2-b)/(1+a)$. It is shown that $K = v_0 t_1/x_1$, where t_1 is the total time of penetration, depends only on the constants <u>a</u> and <u>b</u>, and a graph is given for finding the constant <u>K</u> from assumed values for <u>a</u> and <u>b</u>.

For the Poncelet force law, $R = a + bv^2$, K is a function of $u = v\sqrt{b/a}$ only; and a graph is given for finding K.

Examples are given to illustrate the use of the graphs.

It is shown for any sectional-pressure theory of penetration (that is, $g(x) \equiv 1$) that (a) the remaining penetration $x_1 - x$ beyond any point x is related to the remaining velocity v in the same way that x_1 is related to v_0 , and (b) the remaining time of penetration $t_1 - t$ is related to v in the same way that t_1 is related to v_0 . It follows that $v_0 t_1/x_1 = K(v_0)$ and $v(t_1-t)/(x_1-x)=K(v)$ thus both t_1 and t can be deduced with the aid of a graph of K(v) for the particular sectional-pressure theory assumed. This is illustrated by examples.

A separable force law for perforation leads to a relation between limit, striking, and residual velocities of the form $F(v_{\ell}) = F(v_0) - F(v_r)$, which is independent of the projectile mass and the target strength coefficient <u>c</u>.

In conclusion, it is suggested that sectional-pressure theories tend to give too large estimates for t_1 and that the simple assumption $v_0 t_1/x_1 = 2$ will often give better results.

1. Introduction

The need for a method of estimating forces, velocities, and times during penetration in concrete and other materials has been discussed in previous reports.^{1/} Direct measurements of these quantities are needed but are not as yet available.^{2/} Further work^{3/} has been done to explore the possibility of making reasonable estimates by indirect theoretical methods. These depend on finding a suitable approximation to the force law governing the resistance offered by the target to the projectile during penetration. While this work is specifically directed toward the problem of concrete penetration, the possibility of applying similar methods to other materials is to be kept in mind.

2. Notation

The following notation will be used.

Projectile parameters assumed constant during penetration.	<pre>w = weight. A = maximum cross-sectional area. P = w/A = sectional pressure. P! = P/g = sectional density, where g is the acceleration due to gravity.</pre>
Kinematic variables during peretration.	<pre>x = depth of nose penetration. t = time from beginning of penetration. v = dx/dt = remaining velocity.</pre>
Initial conditions at impact.	$\begin{cases} x = 0. \\ t = 0. \\ v = v_0 = \text{striking velocity.} \end{cases}$
Final conditions at maximum penetration.	$\begin{cases} x = x_1 = \text{maximum penetration.} \\ t = t_1 = \text{time of penetration.} \\ v = 0. \end{cases}$

1/ Introduction in Ref. 2 and Introduction in Ref. 4. See List of References at the back of this report.

2/ Reference 4 describes the development of an experimental method for making such measurements on materials like concrete.

3/ See previous work in Ref. 3.

3. Equation of motion and time of penetration

Using the notation given in Sec. 2, the equation of motion of a projectile during penetration is

- 3

(1) $Pt \frac{dv}{dt} = Pt v \frac{dv}{dx} = -R,$

where \underline{R} , the resisting pressure, is the instantaneous value of the resisting force divided by <u>A</u>, the maximum cross-sectional area of the projectile.

Times may be computed from either of the two expressions

(2)
$$t = \int_0^\infty \frac{dx}{v},$$

(3)
$$t_1 - t = P! \int_0^{t} \frac{dv}{R},$$

provided either that \underline{v} can be expressed as a function of \underline{x} in Eq. (2) or that \underline{R} can be expressed as a function of \underline{v} in Eq. (3).

4. Classification of penetration theories

The resisting pressure R can depend on certain target and projectile parameters that remain constant during the motion and it can depend on certain quantities, like x and \underline{v} , that vary during the motion. It is assumed that R does not depend on the mass of the projectile.

For the theoretical treatment of penetration it is commonly assumed that <u>R</u> depends only on the variables <u>x</u> and <u>v</u> although it may actually depend on more complicated variables during the motion. $\frac{1}{4}$

The force laws corresponding to certain of the classical theories of penetration are:

- (4) Robins-Euler: R = c,
- (5) Poncelet: $R = a + bv^2$,
- (6) Pétry: $R = a \left(1 + \frac{v^2}{215000}\right)$, with <u>v</u> expressed in feet per second,

4/ See page 9 in Ref. 2.

- 4 -

to which may be added

(7)-

 $R = cv^b$.

With b = 0.68 the latter reproduces de Giorgi's values^{5/} for masonry and concrete very well. Some attention has been devoted to Eq. (7) during the present war both here and in England.^{6/}

In these cases the equation of motion, Eq. (1), can be integrated explicitly. In fact, they are all special cases of <u>either</u> of the following two much more general force laws for which Eq. (1) can be integrated:

- (8) Separable: $R = c \cdot g(x) \cdot f(v)$,
- (9) Generalized Poncelet: $R = a(x)v^{2\lambda} + b(x)v^2$.

Figure 1 gives a schematic classification of some of the theories of penetration obtained by progressive specialization (indicated by the arrows) of these two general force laws. Further specializations of Eq. (9) could easily be added to the diagram.

A treatment of the generalized Poncelet theory based on the force law given by Eq. (9) has been given in a previous report.^{7/} The consequences of assuming a separable force law, Eq. (8), have also been treated^{8/} but will be discussed further in this report.

5. The general separable force law $R = c \cdot g(x) \cdot f(v)$

With the separable force law, Eq. (8), $g(x) \cdot f(v)$ may be practically the same for different targets of a given kind of material (for example, concrete) and <u>R</u> for targets of different strengths may differ only in the factor <u>c</u>. For this reason the constant <u>c</u> has been written explicitly instead of absorbing it in the unknown function $g(x) \cdot f(v)$. This makes possible a future "normalization" of the functions g(x) and f(v) whenever this seems appropriate and desirable.

5/ See page 17 and Table V-B, page 64 in Ref. 1. 6/ See, for example, Ref. 5. 7/ See Ref. 3, especially Appendix B. 8/ See pages 3, 4, 5 in Ref. 1.



FIGURE I: CLASSIFICATION OF PENETRATION THEORIES.

CONFIDENTIAL

- 5 -





Values for x and v are marked at distances given by G(x) and F(v). Linear scale for values of $\frac{P!}{C}$ (a) and (b) can be superimposed on same F(v) and G(x) axes. FIGURE 2: GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION OF EQUATIONS (14) AND (15) FOR A SEPARABLE FORCE LAW.

Assuming the force law Eq. (8), Eq. (1) may be integrated by separation of the variables <u>x</u> and <u>v</u>. The constant of integration may be determined from either the initial or the final conditions which yield, respectively, the two equivalent solutions:

- 7 -

(10)
$$cG(x) = P^{\dagger}[F(v_0) - F(v)],$$

(11)
$$c[G(x_1) - G(x)] = P!F(v),$$

where

(12) $G(x) = \int_0^x g(x) dx,$

(13)
$$F(v) = \int_{0}^{v} \frac{v dv}{f(v)}.$$

The "penetration formula," giving the relation between the striking velocity v_0 and the maximum penetration x_1 , is obtained by inserting the final conditions in Eq. (10) or by inserting the initial conditions in Eq. (11):

(14)
$$cG(x_1) = P^{\dagger}F(v_0).$$

Dividing Eq. (10) or Eq. (11) by Eq. (14) gives the symmetrical form

(15)
$$\frac{G(x)}{G(x_1)} + \frac{F(v)}{F(v_0)} = 1,$$

which is independent of \underline{P}' and \underline{c} , for the relation between \underline{x} and \underline{v} during penetration. Penetration times are given by a general formula, Eq. (2) or Eq. (3).

Equations (14) and (15) immediately suggest the graphical representation shown in Fig. 2 for the relations between x_1 and v_0 , and between \underline{x} and \underline{v} , for any separable force law.

The application of the formulae depends on a knowledge of the functions G(x) and F(v). The functional relation between x_1 and v_0 for a given target and projectile can be obtained with reasonable accuracy from penetration experiments. However, this is not sufficient to determine both G(x) and F(v) uniquely. In fact it is evident that one of these can be assumed arbitrarily

Шал.	Relation for <u>t</u> during penetration ^{**}	$v_{o} t = \begin{bmatrix} x & \frac{dx}{dx} & function of x and x_1 \\ \begin{bmatrix} 1 - \frac{G(x)}{G(x_1)} \end{bmatrix}^{\frac{1}{2}-5} \end{bmatrix}$	$v_{o}t = \int_{0}^{x} \frac{dx}{\sqrt{1 - \frac{G(x)}{G(x_{1})}}} = function of x and x_{1}$	$\frac{t_1-t_2}{x_1} = \frac{1}{(1+a)F(v_0)} \int_0^V \frac{dv}{f(v)} \left[1 - \frac{F(v)}{F(v_0)} \right]^{\frac{a}{1+a}} = function of v and v_0$	$\frac{v(t_1 - t)}{x_1 - x} = K(v) = function of v$	$\frac{\left[\frac{v_0t}{x_1} - \frac{1}{x_1}\right]_{0}}{\left[1 - \left(\frac{x}{x_1}\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right]_{0}} = function of \frac{x}{x_1}$	$ \begin{cases} x_0 & x_1 \\ x_1 & x_1 \\ x$		$H = \frac{v(t_1 - t)}{x_{1, -}} = K = 2 = constant$	$\frac{v(t_1 - t)}{x_1 - x} = K(v) = function of v$ with $u = v \sqrt{\frac{b}{a}}$	= 215000 ft ² /sec ² ; $\sqrt{\frac{b}{a}} = 2.157 \times 10^{-3} sec/ft.$	al Notes: Functration formula: $c \cdot G(x_1) = P! \cdot F(v_0)$ Relation between \underline{x} and \underline{y} : $\frac{G(x)}{G(\overline{x_1})} + \frac{F(v_0)}{F(v_0)} = 1$. Independent of $\underline{P}!$ and \underline{C} . The relations for t_1 and \underline{t} are independent of $\underline{P}!$ and \underline{C} . From though $\mathbb{K} \begin{bmatrix} v & o't_1 \\ x_1 \end{bmatrix}$ is a dimensionless pure number, it does not follow from "model theory" that \underline{K} must have the same constant value for all pendura- tions. $\overset{\mathbf{K}}{\underline{t}}$ denotes sectional energy theories, $\mathbb{R} = cg(\mathbf{x})$ $\overset{\mathbf{K}}{\underline{t}}$ denotes sectional pressure theories, $\mathbb{R} = cg(\mathbf{x})$ $\overset{\mathbf{K}}{\underline{t}}$ denotes sectional pressure theories, $\mathbb{R} = cg(\mathbf{x})$	n giving the relation for vi-
Summary of relations for separable force laws.	Relation for time of penetration, $t_{1,}$ in terms of $\mathbb{X}\left[-\frac{v_0t_1}{x_1}\right]$	$\frac{1}{x_1} \int_0^{x_1} \frac{dx}{\left[1 - \frac{d(x_1)}{G(x_1)}\right]^{\frac{1}{\alpha-5}}} = \mathbb{K}(x_1)$	$\frac{1}{x_1} \int_0^x \frac{\mathrm{d}x}{\sqrt{1 - \frac{\mathrm{d}(x_1)}{\mathrm{d}(x_1)}}} = \mathbb{K}(x_1)$	$ \int_{0}^{T_{\mathbf{V}}} \frac{d\mathbf{v}}{E(\mathbf{v})} \frac{1}{\left[1 - \frac{E(\mathbf{v})}{F(\mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{v}})}\right]^{\frac{2}{2}}} = \mathbb{K}(\mathbf{v}_{\mathbf{v}}) $	$\frac{E(\mathbf{v}_{0})}{E(\mathbf{v}_{0})}\int_{\mathbf{v}_{0}}^{\mathbf{v}_{0}} \frac{E(\mathbf{v}_{1})}{E(\mathbf{v}_{0})} = \mathbb{K}(\mathbf{v}_{0})$	$\frac{\Gamma\left(\frac{2+a}{1+a}\right)\cdot\Gamma\left(\frac{2-b}{2-b}\right)}{\Gamma\left(\frac{1}{1+a}+\frac{1-b}{2-b}\right)} \qquad \qquad$	$\sqrt{W} \frac{\Gamma(\frac{C+B}{1+B})}{\Gamma(\frac{1}{1+B}+\frac{1}{2})} = \sqrt{W} \frac{\Gamma(\frac{1+20}{2})}{\Gamma(\frac{1+20}{2})} \alpha = \frac{2}{1+B} \frac{1}{2}$	$\frac{2-b}{1-b} = \frac{\alpha}{\alpha-1} \qquad \qquad$	2 & =2 a=0	$\frac{2u_{o} \tan^{-1}u_{o}}{\ln \left(1 + u_{o}^{2}\right)} = K(v_{o}) \text{ with } u_{o} = v_{o} \sqrt{\frac{b}{a}}$	as Foncelet case with $\underline{\mathbf{v}}$ in ft/sec and $\mathbf{a}/\mathbf{b} = 215$	Independent of \underline{P}^1 and \underline{C} . and \underline{C}_* mumber, it does not follow from "model theory See Ref. 2.	or function defined in the previous column giving the relation for time
Table I.	$F(\psi)\left[-\int_{0}^{\psi}\frac{d\psi}{f(\psi)}\right]$	بوع ال ه 2 – 5	24°2	1 1 1 1	1	9 - 2 2 - 2 2 - 2	n <mark>r k</mark> o	₹ 2=5	°⊾ ∣ ∾	$\frac{1}{26}\ln(1+\frac{b}{a}v^2)$	Same as Ponce.	$P_{1} \cdot F\{v_{o}\}$ $P_{0} = 1, Independent of P and (and of P and (b))$ $P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0}$ $P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0}$ $P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0} = P_{0}$ $P_{0} = P_{0} = P_$	the constant or
	$[\mathbf{G}(\mathbf{x})] = \int_{0}^{\mathbf{x}} g(\mathbf{x}) d\mathbf{x}]$	I	I.	x 148 X + 8 1 + 8	м	x1+a + a	8+1 X X X	н	н	и		al Notes: Penetration formula: $c \cdot G(x_1) = F^{i} \cdot F(v_0)$ Penetration formula: $c \cdot G(x_1) + F(v_0) = 1$. Independent of Relation between \underline{x} and \underline{y} : $\frac{G(x)}{G(\overline{x_1})} + \overline{F(v_0)} = 1$. Independent of The relations for t_1 and \underline{t} are independent of \underline{P}^i and \underline{c} . Even though $\mathbb{K} \left[= \frac{v \cdot \delta \cdot 1}{x_1} \right]$ is a dimensionless pure mumber, it does tions. *E denotes sectional energy theories, $\mathbb{R} = cg(x)$ \overline{E} denotes sectional pressure theories, $\mathbb{R} = cf(v)$ See Ref. 2.	** Where K appears in this column it is the constant
	$\underline{\underline{R}} [= c \cdot g(x) \cdot f(v)]$	cg(x) • v ^b	cg(I)	دع ^ع ((۲	cf(v)	ex ^a v ^b	ब्यू म उ	cv ^D (de Ciorgi)	c Robins-Euler	a + by ² Poncelet	$a\left(1 + \frac{v^2}{215000}\right)$ Petry	al Notes: Fenetration formula: Relation between \underline{x} and \underline{y} : The relations for t_1 and \underline{t} Even though $\mathbb{K} \begin{bmatrix} e & v_0 t_1 \\ x_1 \end{bmatrix}$ is tions.	Where K appears in
	Appli- cable Theory*		154		[بم		ي لكا	<u>р</u>	ନ ଅ	P4	<u>م</u>	deneral Notes: Penstrati Relation The relat Even thou tions. E denote P denote	***

- 8 -

and the other then determined to fit the observed penetration curve. The values of \underline{t} and \underline{t}_1 are, therefore, not uniquely determinable from a knowledge of the penetration curve for a given target and projectile alone.

9 -

If, however, the experimental penetration curves connecting x_1 and v_0 are known for a wide enough range of P' values, then it is, in principle, possible to test whether the form of Eq. (14) can be fitted to the data with sufficient accuracy, and, if so, to evaluate the functions G(x) and F(v). Specifically, this requires that penetration curves be obtained for different values of P' with the same value of c. The different values of P' are obtained by changing the mass of the projectile. The constancy of c may be assumed if the target remains the same and if the size and shape of the different projectiles remain constant.

Table I gives a summary of some of the relations that may be derived for the separable force laws shown in Fig. 1. In each case the functions G(x) and F(v) are given insofar as they may be simplified from Eqs. (12) and (13). The penetration formula, Eq. (14), and the relation given by Eq. (15) between <u>x</u> and <u>v</u> during penetration are not written out in the table for each case since these are completely specified by the functions G(x) and F(v) as given.

The relations given for t_1 and \underline{t} can be worked out from Eqs. (2) and (3). The details of these calculations are not given in order to save space It will be noted that the relations for t_1 and \underline{t} can all be given in a form independent of P' and c. Where K appears in the relation for \underline{t} it is the constant or function defined in the previous column giving the relation for t_1 . The use of the dimensionless quantity v_0t_1/x_1 has been discussed in previous reports.²/

6. The force law $R = cx^{a}v^{b}$

The first four lines of Table I contain examples of separable force laws in which one of the functions, G(x) and F(v), still remains arbitrary.

9/ See Fig. 1, page 6 in Ref. 2 and pages 32, 30 in Ref. 3.

- 10 -

In the next four lines the forms of both functions are specified as constant powers of <u>x</u> and <u>v</u>, respectively. The penetration formula resulting from the assumption

(16) $R = cx^{a}v^{b} \qquad a \ge 0, \qquad b \ge 0$

is

(17)
$$x_{1} = \left(\frac{P!}{\alpha c}\right)^{1/(1+\alpha)} v_{0}^{\alpha},$$

where

(18) $\omega = \frac{2 - b}{1 + a}$

and the time of penetration t_1 satisfies the relation

(19)
$$K = \frac{v_0 t_1}{x_1} = \frac{\left[\frac{2+a}{1+a}\right] \left[\frac{1-b}{2-b}\right]}{\left[\frac{1}{1+a} + \frac{1-b}{2-b}\right]} = \text{constant.}$$

Figure 3 shows the values of K and α obtained from Eqs. (18) and (19) for various values of <u>a</u> and <u>b</u>. Figure 3 covers all four cases of Eq. (16) as given in the fifth, sixth, seventh, and eighth lines of Table I.

For the Robins-Euler theory K = 2 and $\alpha = 2$. It is, however, evident from Fig. 3 that $K = v_0 t_1 / x_1 = 2$ does not necessarily imply a constant resisting force; in fact, <u>K</u> can be made to have the value 2 for any value of α , by proper choice of <u>a</u> and <u>b</u>.

If <u>K</u> and $\underline{\alpha}$ are known, <u>a</u> and <u>b</u> are thereby determined, and conversely. Thus, the force law could be evaluated from measurements of v_0 , x_1 , and t_1 provided that the measurements always gave the same <u>constant</u> values for <u>K</u> and $\underline{\alpha}$.

One way of using Fig. 3 may be illustrated by a problem of the following kind.

Assume that the normal penetration x_1 of a nondeforming projectile into concrete is proportional to the 3/2 power of the striking velocity v_0 (that is, $\alpha = 3/2$) and that the resisting force is representable by Eq. (16).



ت جد

بغمر

CONFIDENTIAL





What is the time of penetration, t_1 , of a projectile that penetrates 4.0 ft at a striking velocity of 2000 ft/sec?

- 13 -

We have $t_1 = Kx_1/v_0 = K \times \frac{1}{2} \times 10^3 = 2 \times 10^{-3} K$ sec. For $\alpha = 3/2$, Fig. 3 gives $1.8 \le K \le 3.0$; hence t_1 lies between 3.6 and 6.0 msec.

If, in addition, it is known that for projectiles of the same caliber and shape the penetration is proportional to the projectile mass for a constant striking velocity, then since P' is the sectional density, from Eq. (17) a = 0 and K = 3.0, $t_1 = 6.0$ msec. If, however, the penetration is only proportional to the 5/6 power of the projectile mass for constant v_0 , then a = 0.2, K = 2.08, $t_1 = 4.16$ msec.

7. The Poncelet force law $R = a + bv^2$

The last two lines of Table I refer to the Poncelet force law

$$R = a + bv^2$$

and to the special case thereof which gives the Pétry penetration formula.

Times of penetration can be obtained from the graph of

 $K(v) = \frac{2u \tan^{-1} u}{\ln(1 + u^2)},$

(21)

where

(22)
$$u = v \sqrt{\frac{b}{a}}$$

shown in Fig. 3. In the Pétry case $a/b = 215000 \text{ ft}^2/\text{sec}^2 \frac{10}{and}$

$$u = 2.157 \times 10^{-3} v$$

where \underline{v} is in feet per second as given on the scale at the top of Fig. 4.

One way of using Fig. 4 may be illustrated by a problem similar to the one used in connection with Fig. 3.

Assume that the Pétry force law holds. What is the time of penetration if $x_1 = 4.0$ ft and $v_0 = 2000$ ft/sec?

From Fig. 4 we find K = 3.89 and, hence, $t_1 = Kx_1/v_0 = 7.78$ msec.

10/ See page 15 in Ref. 1.

CONFIDENTIAL

8. Sectional-pressure theories and the time of penetration

If the resisting force R depends only on the instantaneous velocity v

during penetration and not on the depth x,

(23)
$$R = cf(v);$$

then Eqs. (14) and (11) become, respectively,

 $x_1 = \frac{P!}{C} F(v_0),$ (24)

(25)
$$\mathbf{x}_{1} - \mathbf{x} = \frac{\mathrm{Pt}}{\mathrm{c}} \mathrm{F}(\mathbf{v}),$$

while, from Eq. (3), we have

(26)
$$t_1 = \frac{P!}{c} \int_0^{v_0} \frac{dv}{f(v)}$$

and

(27)
$$t_{1} - t = \frac{P!}{c} \int_{0}^{V} \frac{dv}{f(v)}.$$

The theories that fall in this class are called sectional-pressure 2101 theories since, according to Eq. (24), the penetration x_1 is proportional to the sectional pressure P. They are marked with the letter P at the_left side of Table I, and include all of the classical theories -- Eqs. (4), (5), (6), and (7).

According to any sectional-pressure theory with $R = c \cdot f(v)$; the remaining penetration $x_1 - x$ beyond any point x of the path is related to the remaining velocity v at that point in the same way that the total penetration x_1 is related to the striking velocity v_0 . [Compare Eqs. (24) and (25).]^{11/} Furthermore, the remaining time $t_1 - t$ is related to v in the same way that the total time t_1 is related to v_0 . [Compare Eqs. (26) and (27).] Thus we have from Eqs. (24) and (26),

(28)
$$\frac{v_{0}t_{1}}{x_{1}} = \frac{v_{0}}{F(v_{0})} \int_{0}^{v_{0}} \frac{dv}{f(v)} = K(v_{0}),$$

11/ The case $F(v) = v^{3/2}$, as discussed in Ref. 5, is a particular example of this general statement.

and the provide of

- 15 -

and, from Eqs. (25) and (27),

(29)
$$\frac{v(t_1 - t)}{x_1 - x} = \frac{v}{F(v)} \int_0^v \frac{dv}{f(v)} = K(v)$$

as shown in Table I. The values of P^{I} and <u>c</u> have been eliminated in obtaining these expressions, and <u>K</u> is the same function of its argument in both cases.

The time <u>t</u> at any point during penetration may be computed from these equations for any assumed sectional-pressure theory from given values of x_1 , v_0 , and either <u>x</u> or <u>v</u> to specify the point at which <u>t</u> is to be found. The remaining one of the pair <u>x</u>, <u>v</u> is first obtained from Eq. (15), which on a sectional-pressure theory becomes

(30)
$$\frac{x}{x_1} + \frac{F(v)}{F(v_0)} = 1.$$

Then t_1 and \underline{t} can be evaluated from Eqs. (28) and (29). These steps can be carried out with the aid of two graphs constructed for the particular f(v) assumed in Eq. (23); namely, a graph of Eq. (30) as suggested in Fig. 2(b), and a graph of K(v) as illustrated in Fig. 4.

This method of computation may be illustrated by the following examples. Assume (as before) $v_0 = 2000$ ft/sec and $x_1 = 4.0$ ft. Find the remaining velocity v and the time t at the depth x = 3.0 ft for each of the assumptions:

A:
$$f(v) = \sqrt{v}$$
,
B: $f(v) = 1 + \frac{v^2}{215000}$. (Pétry)

For A we have

$$F(v) = \int_{0}^{v} \frac{v \, dv}{f(v)} = \frac{2}{3} v^{3/2}, \quad \alpha = 3/2,$$
$$\frac{x}{x_{1}} + \left(\frac{v}{v_{0}}\right)^{3/2} = 1, \text{ or } v = 794 \text{ ft/sec},$$

and

$$K = \frac{\alpha}{\alpha - 1} = 3.0 = \frac{v_0 t_1}{x_1} = \frac{v(t_1 - t)}{x_1 - x};$$

С	0	N	F	I	D	Ε	Ν	Τ	Ι	Α	L	•
---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---	---

- 16 -

whence

$$t_1 = 3.0x_1/v_0 = 6.0 \text{ msec},$$

 $t_1 - t = 3.0(x_1 - x)/v = 3.0/794 = 3.78 \text{ msec},$
 $t = 2.22 \text{ msec}.$

For B we have the Pétry case

$$\frac{x}{x_1} + \frac{\ln\left(1 + \frac{v^2}{215000}\right)}{\ln\left(1 + \frac{v_0^2}{215000}\right)} = 1, \text{ or } v = 487 \text{ ft/sec.}$$

From Fig. 4,

whence

$$t_{1} = 3.89x_{1}/v_{0} = 7.78 \text{ msec},$$

$$t_{1} - t = 2.28(x_{1} - x)/v = \frac{2.28}{487} = 4.68 \text{ msec},$$

$$t = 3.10 \text{ msec}.$$

a provinsi se se se

9. A perforation hypothesis

The analysis so far has dealt only with the <u>penetration</u> of a massive target by a nondeforming projectile. If the target is thin enough the projectile will <u>perforate</u> the target; that is, the projectile will pass through the target and will emerge from the back face with a residual velocity v_r . For a target of thickness <u>e</u>, there will be a limit velocity v_ℓ for which the projectile will just perforate the target.

If we assume that the motion during perforation is governed by a separable force law,

(31)
$$R = c \cdot g_{e}(x) \cdot f(v),$$

then

(32)
$$g_e(x) = 0 \text{ for } x \ge x_e$$

UNCEASSIFIED A L

U TUEAD DIT T

since the force must fall to zero at the end of perforation. The distance x_e over which target resistance acts on the projectile will be roughly equal to the target thickness <u>e</u>. However, in the case of a brittle, scab-forming material like concrete we may have $x_e < e$, while for cohesive or ductile materials like steel we may have $x_e > e$.

- 17 -

Integrating the equation of motion, Eq. (1), for the separable force law, Eq. (31), in the case of perforation $(v_0 \ge v_p, v_r \ge 0)$ we get

$$P![F(v_0) - F(v_r)] = cG_e,$$

where

(34)
$$G_{e_{e_{e_{e}}}} = \int_{0}^{x_{e_{e}}} g_{e}(x) dx = \text{constant.}$$

Since by definition of v_{e} , $v_{e} = v_{o}$ when $v_{r} = 0$, we obtain from Eq. (33)

(35)
$$\frac{cG_e}{P!} = F(v_e) = F(v_o) - F(v_r).$$

It would be natural to assume that the function f(v) in Eq. (31) for perforation is the same as f(v) in Eq. (8) for penetration when the targets are of the same material. Then the relation given by Eq. (35) among v_{ℓ} , v_{o} , and v_{r} involves the same F(v) as defined for penetration in Eq. (13). Thus perforation measurements of striking and residual velocities would offer a means of evaluating the function F(v). Alternatively, if F(v) is known from penetration data, Eq. (35) offers a method of estimating residual velocities v_{r} .

10. Conclusions

Of the two general cases of force laws that can be explicitly integrated, the separable force laws, Eq. (8), lead to simpler general expressions . than the generalized Poncelet force laws, Eq. (9), $\frac{12}{}$ especially when <u>x</u>, <u>v</u>, <u>t</u>, and t₁ are to be calculated.

For separable force laws the relation between \underline{x} and \underline{v} during penetration can be written in the form given by Eq. (15) in which P' and c do not appear, but in which both x_1 and v_0 are used explicitly. The examples given illustrate the fact that this leads to simple methods for computing \underline{x} , \underline{v} , \underline{t} , and t_1 .

12/ Compare Ref. 3.

- 18 -

The resisting pressure <u>R</u> has been defined as the resisting force divided by <u>A</u>, the <u>maximum</u> cross-sectional area of the projectile. It is, therefore, to be expected that <u>R</u> will depend on <u>x</u> at least to the extent that the "amplitude of impression"^{13/} increases with the depth <u>x</u> of nose ponetration while the pointed nose of a projectile or bomb is entering the target. On this basis a pure sectional-pressure theory, involving no dependence of <u>R</u> on <u>x</u>, would not be correct. In a qualitative way Fig. 2 shows the large effect that a small degree of <u>x</u>-dependence may have on the computed times of penetration, t₁. It has been pointed out $\frac{11}{4}$ that sectional-pressure theories with df/dv > 0 always lead to values of K = $v_0 t_1/x_1$ larger than 2, while for sectional-energy theories with dg/dx > 0, K is less than 2. It is, therefore, felt that pure sectional-pressure theories (in particular, the classical theories) tend to give values of t_1 that are too large, and that better values may often be gotten by the crude but simple assumption that K = 2. For concrete, <u>K</u> may increase somewhat with x_1 .^{15/}

List of References

- 1. "Terminal ballistics I," by H. P. Robertson, Committee on Passive Protection Against Bombing, Interim Report, Jan. 1941. Unclassified.
- 2. "Penetration theory: Estimates of velocity and time during penetration," by R. A. Beth, OTB-7 (OSRD-4720). Confidential.
- 3. "Concrete penetration," by R. A. Beth, NDRC Report A-319 (CSRD-4856), March 1945. Confidential.
- 4. "An electromagnetic method for measuring projectile velocity during penetration," by R. A. Beth and E. J. Schaefer, NDRC Report A-329 (OSRD-5175).
- 5. "Penetration of projectiles into concrete," REN 376, British Ministry of Home Security, June 1944. British Secret.
 - 13/ See page 22, Ref. 1.
 - 14/ See Fig. 1 in Ref. 2.
 - 15/ Compare Fig. 11, page 32 in Ref. 3.



						sign and you.					accept al	(Si phatime)
nt fice D.C.				ittee			Number			•	eccived the material described above and ac its safe handling, storage, and transmittal with existing regulations of OSRD, the War Department, whichever is pertinent.	(S; P
of: 5,				Diamond, National Defense Research Committee	25, D.C.	5.7	Copy Ni	CC			received the material described above its safe handling, storage, and trans with existing regulations of OSRD, th Department, wrichever is pertinent.	
Office of Scientific Kesearch and Levelopmen MATIONAL DEFENSE RESEARCH COMMITTEE Technical Reports Section, Vice Chairman's Offi Aoom 4724; Munitions Building, Washington 25,		P.C.W.		e Resear	Building, Washington 25,		<u>म</u>		,		al descr storage lations ver is p	
rsearch TSEANCH , Vice ding, W	1945	104-146		Defense	AC, Wash	items listed The copy may	OSRD Number	5253			personally received the material ibility for its safe handling, s accordance with existing regulation the Navy Department, whicheven	
tific Ke EFENSE F Section Dns Buil	Jul 7	HOC - HOC	署	ational	Buildi	re the tely.	ISO	, Š	.*		ved the safe ha ststi rtnent,	I
f Scien IJNAL J Reports Munitic		67.10	Ret Post of	amond, N	Munitions	ewith are the immediately.	", - 1					
Office of Scientific Kesearch MATIONAL DEFENSE RESEANC Technical Reports Section, Vice hoom 4724; Munitions Building,			1.41.6	h W. Dis	4724, Mu	Transmitted herewith <u>n</u> this receipt immedi	NDKC Number	3			I have personally r full responsibility for elsewhere in accordance Department, or the wavy	57-11-
Te C		dom on	1001 -	Hannah M.	Room 4 724,	Transmi return this 1	NDHON	-320			L have p responsi here in tment, o	7-7
		HO.	-	FROM:		returi					I have full respons elsewhere ir Department,	Date:
مر ب												

1

._•

ŝ

ŧ

States and the second second

UNCLASSIFIED